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1

 Plaintiff Jonathon Fisher (“Plaintiff”), brings this action on behalf of himself 

and all others similarly situated against The Blue Buffalo Company, Ltd. (“Blue 

Buffalo” or “Defendant”), and Does 1 through 100, inclusive (hereinafter 

“Defendants”) for unlawful, unfair, and deceptive business practices in violation of 

California Business & Professions Code Section 17200 et seq., California Business & 

Professions Code Section 17500 et seq., California Civil Code Section 1750 et seq. 

and alleges as follows: 

 

JURISDICTION AND VENUE 

1. This Court has original jurisdiction pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1332(d)(2).  

The matter in controversy, exclusive of interest and costs, exceeds the sum or value 

of $5,000,000 and is a class action in which there are in excess of 100 class members 

and Defendant is a citizen of Delaware and Connecticut, and members of the Class 

are citizens of California.   

2. Venue is proper in this Court pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1391(a) and (b) 

and California Civil Code § 1730(d), because a substantial part of the events or 

omissions giving rise to Plaintiff’s claims occurred in this District, and the 

transaction occurred in this District. 

THE PARTIES 

3. Plaintiff Jonathon Fisher is, and at all times relevant hereto was, an 

individual residing in the State of California.  

4. Defendant The Blue Buffalo Company Ltd. is a Delaware corporation, 

with its principal place of business located at 444 Danbury Road, Wilton, Connecticut 

06897.  Blue Buffalo is in the business of manufacturing, marketing, and selling pet 

food, pet treats, and related products nationwide, including individuals in California 

such as Plaintiff and the proposed Class.    

5. The true names and capacities, whether individual, corporate, associate or 

otherwise of certain manufacturers, distributors and/or their alter egos sued herein as 
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DOES 1 through 100 inclusive are presently unknown to Plaintiff who therefore sues 

these Defendants by fictitious names.  Plaintiff will seek leave of this Court to amend 

the Complaint to show the true names and capacities of said Doe Defendants when the 

same have been ascertained.  Plaintiff is informed and believes and based thereon 

alleges that DOES 1 through 100 were authorized to do and did business in this 

District.  Plaintiffs are further informed and believe and based thereon allege that 

DOES 1 through 100 were and/or are, in some manner or way, responsible for and 

liable to Plaintiff for the events, happenings and damages hereinafter set forth below. 

6. Plaintiff is informed and believes and based thereon alleges that at all 

times relevant herein each of the Defendants was the agent, servant, employee, 

subsidiary, affiliate, partner, assignee, successor-in-interest, alter ego or other 

representative of each of the remaining Defendants and was acting in such capacity in 

doing the things herein complained of and alleged. 

7. In committing the wrongful acts alleged herein, Defendants planned and 

participated in and furthered a common scheme by means of false, misleading, 

deceptive and fraudulent representations to induce members of the public to purchase 

Products. 

 

 FACTUAL ALLEGATIONS 

Background 

1. Pets are a beloved member of American families.  Currently, Americans 

own over 86.4 million cats and 78.2 million dogs.  In fact, the number of households 

with pets tops the number with children.   

2. To that end, research shows a growing trend for American families to 

think of pets as children.  It is now considered socially acceptable to treat pets as 

members of the family and to express the love by spending lavishly on them.  

America’s love affair with dogs and cats has produced everything from luxury pet 

spas to gourmet pet meals.   
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3. The current demand on pet goods has made the pet food industry a big 

business.  In 2013 alone, cat and dog food sales rose to over $20 billion in the United 

States. 

4. For the past decade, the new craze in the pet industry has been “premium 

pet food,” with pet food manufacturers and marketers capitalizing on America’s trend 

of health and wellness.  This big business pet industry is why ultra-premium pet food 

brands are marked with labels like “human grade,” claiming to include only natural 

and organic products.    

5. Not surprisingly, this lucrative market has attracted a variety of hucksters 

seeking to “cash in” on American’s current desire to pamper their pets, whom they 

consider a part of the family.  

6. Defendant Blue Buffalo takes advantage of the public’s desire to keep 

its pets alive and healthy by creating a brand targeted at ingredient-conscious pet 

owners.  Defendant markets its pet food as providing “superior nutrition,” with Blue 

Buffalo’s pet food containing “only the finest natural ingredients,” and most 

importantly, without containing certain harmful ingredients such as “Chicken or 

Poultry By-Product Meals,” “Corn, Wheat or Soy,” or “Artificial Preservatives, 

Colors or Flavors.”   

7. Chicken/poultry by-product, corn, wheat, soy, and artificial 

preservatives, colors or flavors are all harmful for pet consumption due to their 

adverse health effects.  Defendant’s website acknowledges “[p]oultry (chicken) by-

product meal consists of the ground, rendered, clean parts of the carcass of 

slaughtered poultry, such as necks, feet, undeveloped eggs, and intestines.  These 

ingredients are commonly lower in cost than fresh meat.”  Further, Defendant states 

corn, wheat and soy are “[a]ll of these fillers are incomplete sources of protein and 

can trigger allergic reactions in some dogs.  Grain proteins are used by some brands 

as inexpensive substitutes for meat protein.  These grains do not contain the complete 

amino acid profiles specific for dogs and cats and are not as easily digestible as more 
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nutritious meat-based proteins.”  Finally, Defendant claims artificial colors, flavors 

or preservatives contain “preservatives like BHA, BHT, ethoxyquin and propylene 

glycol that provide no nutritional value and have been associated with possible 

toxic side effects.  Many pet food brands resort to artificial colors and flavors in an 

attempt to make food look and taste better.”  See www.bluebuffalo.com/true-blue-

test/compare-dog-food/results/.  

8. Defendant sells its Products at an extraordinary premium price when 

compared to other pet food brands.  Defendant, however, rationalizes its cost by 

stating “[a]t Blue Buffalo we think the cost is well worth it to know exactly what’s in 

our food.”  See www.bluebuffalo.com/why-choose-blue/nutrition-philosophy/. 

9. Consumers, including Plaintiff and other members of the Class, do not 

have specialized knowledge of the ingredients contained in Defendant’s pet food and 

are forced to rely on Defendant’s representations.   

10. In reality, Defendant’s advertising is false and misleading.  Scientific 

testing reveals Defendant’s Pet Food Products including its “Life Protection” line, 

“Wilderness” line, “Freedom” line, and “Basics” line (hereinafter collectively 

referred to as “Products”) contain chicken/poultry by-product meal, corn, rice, grains, 

as well as artificial preservatives.  See www.bluebuffalo.com/product-finder/dogs/.  

11. As a result of the presence of these ingredients, the Products are not 

worth the substantial price premium they command, and consumers, including 

Plaintiff and the Class, would not have paid a premium had they known the truth 

regarding the true ingredients present in the Products.  As Defendant itself states on 

its website “[p]oultry or chicken by-product meals cost a lot less than meals made 

from whole meat.”  Since scientific testing reveals the presence of chicken/poultry 

by-products in the Products, as well as other inexpensive pet food “fillers,” 

consumers are not receiving the value of the premium price for which they paid. 

12. On July 31, 2008, the National Advertising Division (NAD) of the 

Council of Better Business Bureaus instructed Blue Buffalo to “discontinue its ‘no 
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animal by-products’ claims when made in reference to pet foods containing fish 

meal, lame meal and/or liver.”  See Exhibit “A.”   

13. In response to the NAD’s instruction to immediately discontinue 

Defendant’s misleading advertising, Blue Buffalo switched to new, but equally 

misleading, claims that its Products  “NEVER have Chicken (or Poultry) By-Product 

Meals.”   

14. Throughout the Class Period, and despite being on notice, Defendant 

has engaged in advertising and marketing campaigns with pet food nutrition claims 

deceptive to consumers.  The campaigns have been broadcast to the Class through a 

broad range of media, including Product packaging, labeling, television, radio, print 

and internet.  The campaigns, in their entirety, are false and misleading.  

15. As a result of its deceptive nutrition claims for the Products, Defendant 

sells thousands of units of the Products nationally per month through retail stores and 

online. 

16. This action seeks to halt Defendant’s deceptive advertising and 

marketing of the Products. 

 

Defendant’s Advertising and Marketing of Pet Food Products 

17. In the now ultra-competitive market for premium pet food, companies 

make advertising claims for their respective products, which, based off extensive 

consumer research, they know will differentiate their products from others in the 

marketplace. 

18. Based on information and belief, Defendant has expert knowledge of the 

consumer market for pet food products and has designed coordinated, uniform 

advertising and marketing for the Products, using a variety of deceptive nutrition 

claims.   

19. In line with its marketing strategy of preying on families’ love for their 

pets in order to reap financial reward, Blue Buffalo promotes its slogan: “Love them 
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like family.  Feed them like family.”   

20. Moreover, Defendant tells “The BLUE Story” in its advertising.  “The 

BLUE Story” is Defendant’s sad story of how and why Blue Buffalo came to be.   

Tugging at consumer heartstrings, “The BLUE Story” tells a story of the health 

struggles of the company’s founder’s dog named Blue, a large-breed Airedale, who 

served as inspiration to create “commercially available food that would include 

ingredients to nourish our companions.”  “We don’t ‘own’ our dogs and cats; they are 

family members and companions whom we treat with love and respect.”  “Defendant 

states “BLUE dog and cat foods contain no chicken or poultry by-product meals, and 

no artificial preservatives, colors or flavors. And BLUE dog and cat foods contain no 

corn, wheat or soy, which have all been known to trigger allergies in some pets.”  See 

www.bluebuffalo.com/why-choose-blue/blue-story/.  

 The “TRUE BLUE PROMISE”  

21. Blue Buffalo’s guarantees its “TRUE BLUE PROMISE”, which states 

the Products not only use “Only the Finest Natural Ingredients,” but also contain “NO 

Chicken or Poultry By-Product Meals,” “NO Corn, Wheat or Soy,” and “NO Artificial 

Preservatives, Colors, or Flavors.”  The TRUE BLUE PROMISE is prominently 

displayed on Product packaging as well as Product advertisements:    
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LifeSource Bits 

22. Defendant touts its “nutritious” dry cat and dog food Products, claiming 

they contain “LifeSource Bits,” exclusive to Blue Buffalo, which are essentially small 

pieces of kibble.   

23. Defendant advertises LifeSource Bits to be “a precise blend of vitamins, 

minerals and antioxidants selected by holistic veterinarians and animal nutritionists.  

And now all BLUE Life Protection Formula dog foods feature LifeSource Bits that 

have been enhanced with our Super 7 package of antioxidant-rich ingredients.”  

Defendant further claims the ingredients in LifeSource Bits help support: immune 

system health, life stage requirements, and healthy oxidative balance.  See 

www.bluebuffalo.com/true-blue-test/compare-dog-food/results/.  

24. Defendant’s website provides detail for the nutrition it claims for its 

LifeSource Bits: 
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See www.bluebuffalo.com/lifesource-bits/. 

 

Comparative Advertising 

25. Defendant’s website goes so far as to feature comparisons between its 

Products and other “less nutritious” brands.  Defendant represents to consumers its 

Products are healthier than other brands as a result of the quality ingredients 

contained, and most importantly, the inferior ingredients not contained.   

26. Defendant’s website offers visitors to compare Blue Buffalo’s Products 

to popular pet food brands by using its “True Blue Test.”  This is yet another 

marketing strategy to assure the potential consumer distinguishes Blue Buffalo from 

other brands.  The “True Blue Test” invites website visitors to compare the alleged 

ingredients contained and excluded in Defendants Products, with those of other 

leading brands.   The “True Blue Test” webpage states Blue Buffalo’s Products 

“NEVER Ha[ve] Chicken (or Poultry) By-Product Meals,” “NEVER Ha[ve] Corn, 

Wheat or Soy,” and “NEVER Ha[ve] Artificial Colors, Flavors or Preservatives.”  

Further, Defendant identifies competing brands it alleges to contain these undesirable 

ingredients.  See www.bluebuffalo.com/true-blue-test-/compare-dog-food/results/. 

27. Defendant further hypes its “nutritional superiority” to other brands by 

pointing to its LifeSource Bits, contained in its Products and exclusive to Blue 

Buffalo: 

 
“When you compare dog foods or compare cat foods, you will see that this 
“cold-formed” process is an important difference between BLUE and other 
brands that add antioxidants and vitamins.  Other manufacturers process their 
foods with heat as high as 350°.  High heat can destroy the potency of many 
vitamins, minerals, antioxidants and important enzymes.  It’s the same concept 
as when you cook vegetables at high heat – the longer you do, the more heat-
sensitive nutrients are lost.  LifeSource Bits are manufactured separately at a 
lower temperature from the rest of our kibble to preserve greater potency of the 
vitamins and antioxidants.  This way, your pet can gain as many benefits as 
possible from these valuable nutrients.”  See www.bluebuffalo.com/lifesource-
bits/.  

Case 2:14-cv-05937-FMO-SH   Document 1   Filed 07/29/14   Page 9 of 43   Page ID #:17



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

 

CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT 

 

9

Defendant’s Advertising Claims For The Products Are False and Deceptive 

28. Defendant’s advertising gives consumers the net impression the Pet Food 

Products are superior to other pet foods because they do not contain certain 

undesirable ingredients, and because they will provide the pet with nutritional benefits 

it would not receive from other brands.  As a result, the consumer is led to believe 

Blue Buffalo is worth its premium price.   

29. Unfortunately for consumers, Defendant’s advertising claims, in their 

entirety, are false and deceptive. 

 Defendant’s Products Contain the Harmful Ingredients It Claims to Exclude 

30. Despite Defendant’s claims the Products “NEVER Ha[ve] Chicken (or 

Poultry) By-Product Meals”, “NEVER Ha[ve] Corn, Wheat or Soy,” and “NEVER 

Ha[ve] Artificial Colors, Flavors or Preservatives,” independent testing confirms 

Defendant’s claims are patently false.   

31. Nestle Purina Petcare Company hired an independent laboratory to 

investigate and test Defendant’s Products.  The investigation revealed Defendant’s 

core statements about its Products’ ingredients are materially false.  Nestle Purina 

Petcare Company v. The Blue Buffalo Company LTD., Case No. 4:14-cv-00859, (E.D. 

Mo., May 11, 2014), (Dkt. 9). 

32. The April 2014 Blue Buffalo Product investigation revealed 

chicken/poultry by-product meal to be found in amounts upwards of 20% of the 

Product by weight.  Chicken/Poultry by-product meal was also found in Blue 

Buffalo’s coveted LifeSource Bits. 

33. The investigation also confirmed Defendant’s Products also contain corn 

and artificial preservatives, despite Defendant’s claims the Products “never” contain 

these ingredients.   

34. Specifically, testing revealed the presence of rice and/or corn in 

Defendant’s “100% Grain Free” Products and its LifeSource Bits.  Corn and/or rice 

was found in the Products in one sample at 1% as well as in the LifeSource Bits 
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between 1% and 3%.   

35. Further, testing found rice hulls to be used as an ingredient in 

Defendant’s “100% Grain Free” Products and LifeSource Bits. 

36. Aside from having no nutritional value, as Defendant itself acknowledges 

in its marketing, these ingredients it claims to exclude are potentially dangerous to pet 

health as they are common pet allergens and potentially toxic.  Not only does 

Defendant not disclose the potentially harmful and toxic nature of its ingredients, it 

asserts they pose no harmful threat as the ingredients are claimed to not be present. 

37. Due to the presence of the undesirable ingredients in Blue Buffalo’s 

Products, Defendant’s Products do not provide the nutritional benefit they attribute to 

its premium price.   

LifeSource Bits 

38. Contrary to Defendant’s claims, testing concludes chicken/poultry by-

product meal to be present in Defendant’s LifeSource Bits in amounts as high as 11%. 

39. Additionally, Defendant makes claims its LifeSource Bits contain certain 

levels of vitamins, minerals, and nutrients to provide specific health benefits such as 

“healthy skin and coat” and “healthy bones and tissues,” when LifeSource Bits do not 

contain the requisite levels of vitamins, minerals, or nutrients to provide those health 

benefits.  Moreover, Defendant advertises certain vitamins, minerals and nutrients 

purportedly found in its LifeSource Bits provide health benefits for which there is no 

scientific evidence. 

Plaintiff’s Purchase and Pet Consumption of Blue Buffalo Pet Food Products  

40. Plaintiff purchased Blue Buffalo Pet Food Products, including its Salmon 

and Potato Recipe, Lamb and Brown Rice Recipe, and Chicken and Brown Rice 

Recipe, on a monthly basis since 2013, in the State of California at retail Petco stores.  

In doing so, Plaintiff relied upon advertising and other promotional materials, 

including information on the product packaging, containing the misrepresentations 

alleged herein, including the claims the Products do not contain certain ingredients 
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and will cause or assist in superior pet nutrition, as referenced above.  Plaintiff fed his 

dog the Products as directed and Plaintiff’s dog thereby consumed the undesirable 

ingredients contained in the Products.  Plaintiff would not have purchased the 

Products had he known Defendant’s advertising claims were false.   

CLASS ACTION ALLEGATIONS 

41. Plaintiff brings this class action for injunctive and related equitable relief 

on behalf of himself, and as a class action on behalf of the following putative class 

(hereafter the “Class”):  

All persons who purchased Blue Buffalo Pet Food Products for use and not for 

resale, in the State of California since July 2010.  

42. Excluded from the Class are Defendant’s officers, directors, employees, 

and any individual who received remuneration from Defendant to act as an endorser 

of the Products.  Plaintiff reserves the right to amend the Class definition if further 

investigation and discovery indicates that the Class definitions should be narrowed, 

expanded, or otherwise modified.  

43. This action is maintainable as a class action under Rules 23(a) and (b)(3) 

of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure. 

44. Numerosity: Plaintiff does not know the exact number of members of the 

putative classes. Due to the nature of the trade and commerce involved, however, 

Plaintiff is informed and believes that the total number of Class members is at least in 

the tens of thousands, and that  members of the Class are numerous and 

geographically dispersed throughout California.  While the exact number and 

identities of the Class members are unknown at this time, such information can be 

ascertained through appropriate investigation and discovery.  The disposition of the 

claims of the Class members in a single class action will provide substantial benefits 

to all parties and to the Court. 

45. Commonality: There is a well-defined community of interest in the 

questions of law and fact involved affecting the plaintiff Class and these common 
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questions predominate over any questions that may affect individual Class members.  

Common questions of fact and law include, but are not limited to, the following: 

a. Whether Defendant falsely advertises and misrepresents the benefits of 

the Products; 

b. Whether Defendant’s mass media advertising and/or the packaging for 

the Products is misleading and deceptive; 

c. Whether Defendant’s labeling and/or packaging for the Products is 

misleading, false and/or illegal; 

d. Whether Defendant represents to consumers that the Products have 

characteristics, uses, benefits or qualities that the Products do not have; 

e. Whether Defendant knew or should have known that the Products do not 

have the characteristics, uses, benefits or qualities for which Defendant 

advertised the Products; 

f. Whether Defendant represented that the Products are of a particular 

standard, quality, or grade, when they are of another; 

g. Whether Defendant advertised the Products with intent to sell them not as 

advertised; 

h. Whether Defendant engaged in unfair, unlawful and/or fraudulent 

business practices in marketing and distributing the Products; 

i. Whether Defendant engaged in false advertising with respect to the 

Products; 

j. Whether Defendant’s representations, concealments and non-disclosures 

concerning the Products are likely to deceive the reasonable consumer; 

k. Whether Defendant’s representations, concealments and non-disclosures 

concerning the Products violate the CLRA, FAL and/or the UCL; 

l. Whether the Class is entitled to injunctive relief prohibiting the 

challenged wrongful practices and enjoining such practices in the future; 

m. Whether the Class is entitled to restitution; and,  
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n. Whether Plaintiff and the Class are entitled to attorneys’ fees and 

expenses, and in what amount. 

46. Typicality: Plaintiff’s claims are typical of the claims of the members of 

the Class in that Plaintiff and the putative class members each purchased the Products 

during the Class Period, and the products purchased by Plaintiff and the putative class 

members contained unfairly deceptive and misleading representations. 

47. Adequacy of Representation: Plaintiff will fairly and adequately 

represent and protect the interests of the Class in that Plaintiff is a typical purchaser of 

the Products and has no conflicts of interest with any member of the proposed Class.  

Additionally, Plaintiff has retained counsel with experience in handling complex class 

action litigation who will fairly and adequately protect the interests of the putative 

classes.  Plaintiff and his counsel are committed to vigorously prosecuting this action 

on behalf of the Class and Plaintiff’s Counsel has the financial resources to do so.   

48. Superiority: Plaintiff and the members of the Class suffered, and will 

continue to suffer, harm as a result of Defendant’s unlawful and wrongful conduct.  

This class action is superior to the alternatives, if any, for the fair and efficient 

adjudication of this controversy.  The relief sought per individual member of the 

putative class is small given the burden and expense of individual prosecution of the 

potentially extensive litigation necessitated by the conduct of Defendant.  

Furthermore, it would be virtually impossible for the putative class members to seek 

redress on an individual basis.  Even if the putative class members themselves could 

afford such individual litigation, the court system could not. Individual litigation 

magnifies the delay and expense to all parties in the court system of resolving the 

controversies engendered by Defendant’s common course of conduct.  The class 

action device allows a single court to provide the benefits of unitary adjudication, 

judicial economy, and the fair and efficient handling of all class members’ claims in a 

single forum.  The conduct of this action as a class action conserves the resources of 

the parties and of the judicial system and protects the rights of the class members.  
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Furthermore, for many, if not most, a class action is the only feasible mechanism that 

allows an opportunity for legal redress and justice. 

49. Adjudication of individual class members’ claims with respect to 

Defendant would, as a practical matter, be dispositive of the interests of other 

members not parties to the adjudication, and could substantially impair or impede the 

ability of other class members to protect their interests. 

50. If necessary, notice of this action may be affected to the proposed classes 

through publication and through contact information maintained by Defendant.  

51. Unless a classwide injunction is issued, Defendant will continue to 

commit the violations alleged, and the members of the Classes will continue to be 

misled.   

FIRST CAUSE OF ACTION 
VIOLATION OF UNFAIR COMPETITION LAW 

(CAL. BUS. & PROF. CODE § 17200, et seq.) 
(Unlawful, Unfair, and Fraudulent Prongs of the Act) 

52. Plaintiff incorporates by this reference the allegations contained in the 

preceding paragraphs as if fully set forth herein. 

53. Plaintiff brings this claim individually and on behalf of the proposed 

Class against Defendants. 

54. California Business and Professions Code § 17200 prohibits any “unfair, 

deceptive, untrue or misleading advertising.” For the reasons discussed above, 

Defendant has engaged in unfair, deceptive, untrue and misleading advertising in 

violation of California Business & Professions Code §17200. 

55. As alleged herein, Plaintiff has standing to pursue this claim as Plaintiff 

has suffered injury in fact and has lost money or property as a result of Defendant’s 

actions.  Specifically, Plaintiff purchased the Products multiple times for his own 

dog’s consumption.  In so doing, Plaintiff relied upon the false representations that the 

Products do not contain certain undesirable ingredients and will cause or assist in 

superior pet nutrition, as referenced above.  Plaintiff fed his pet the Products as 
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directed and Plaintiff’s dog thereby consumed the undesirable ingredients contained in 

the Products.  Plaintiff would not have purchased the Products had he known 

Defendant’s advertising claims were false. 

56. Unlawful Business Practices: The actions of Defendant, as alleged 

herein, constitute illegal and unlawful practices committed in violation of the Business 

& Professions Code §17200.  

57. Defendant has committed unlawful business practices by, inter alia, 

making the representations and omissions of material facts, as set forth more fully 

herein, and violating California Civil Code §§ 1709, 1710, 1711, 1770, Business & 

Professions Code § 17200 et seq., and Business & Professions Code § 17500, et seq. 

58. In addition, Defendant has unlawfully manufactured, packaged, labeled, 

advertised, and/or distributed the Products in violation of the California Health & 

Safety Code, which governs Defendant’s conduct, in that Defendants have 

disseminated false advertisements of the Products, and that the product advertising 

and packaging contain false or misleading statements as to the purported benefits of 

the Products in violation of Bus. & Prof. Code § 17500, Civil Code §1750, which 

govern Defendant’s conduct.  Defendant also violated the unlawful prong of the UCL 

because their false advertising of the Products, as set forth above, violates the FTC 

Act (15 U.S.C. §45, et seq.). 

59. Plaintiff and the Class reserve the right to allege other violations of law 

which constitute other unlawful business acts or practices. Such conduct is ongoing 

and continues to this date. 

60. Unfair Business Practices: California Business & Professions Code § 

17200 also prohibits any “unfair ... business act or practice.”  

61. Defendant’s acts, omissions, misrepresentations, practices and non-

disclosures as alleged herein also constitute “unfair” business acts and practices within 

the meaning of Business & Professions Code § 17200 et seq. in that its conduct is 

substantially injurious to consumers, offends public policy, and is immoral, unethical, 
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oppressive, and unscrupulous as the gravity of the conduct outweighs any alleged 

benefits attributable to such conduct. 

62. There were reasonably available alternatives to further Defendant’s 

legitimate business interests, other than the conduct described herein. 

63. Fraudulent Business Practices: California Business & Professions Code 

§ 17200 also prohibits any “fraudulent business act or practice.”  

64. Defendant’s claims, nondisclosures and misleading statements with 

respect to the Products, as more fully set forth above, were false, misleading and/or 

likely to deceive the consuming public within the meaning of Business & Professions 

Code § 17200. 

65. Defendant’s conduct caused and continues to cause injury to Plaintiff and 

the other Class members. Plaintiff has suffered injury in fact and has lost money as a 

result of Defendant’s unfair conduct. 

66. Pursuant to section 17203 of the California Business and Professions 

Code, Plaintiff and the Class seek an order of this court enjoining Defendant from 

continuing to engage in unlawful, unfair, or deceptive business practices and any other 

act prohibited by law, including  but not limited to: (a) selling, marketing, or 

advertising the Products with false representations set forth above; (b)  engaging in 

any of the illegal, fraudulent, misleading, unlawful, unfair and/or deceptive conduct 

described herein; and (c) engaging in any other conduct found by the Court to be 

illegal, fraudulent, misleading, unlawful, unfair and/or deceptive conduct. 

67. In addition, Plaintiff requests that this Court enter such orders or 

judgments as may be necessary to restore to any person in interest any money which 

may have been acquired by means of such illegal practices as provided in Bus. & Prof. 

Code § 17203, and for such other relief as set forth below. 

// 

// 

// 
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SECOND CAUSE OF ACTION 
FALSE AND MISLEADING ADVERTISING 
(CAL. BUS. & PROF. CODE § 17500, et seq.) 

68. Plaintiff incorporates by this reference the allegations contained in the 

preceding paragraphs as if fully set forth herein. 

69. Plaintiff brings this claim individually and on behalf of the proposed 

Class against Defendant. 

70. As alleged herein, Plaintiff has standing to pursue this claim as Plaintiff 

has suffered injury in fact and has lost money or property as a result of Defendant’s 

actions.  Specifically, Plaintiff purchased the Products multiple times for his own 

dog’s consumption.  In so doing, Plaintiff relied upon the false representations that the 

Products do not contain certain undesirable ingredients and will cause or assist in 

superior pet nutrition, as referenced above.  Plaintiff fed his dog the Products as 

directed and Plaintiff’s dog thereby consumed the undesirable ingredients contained in 

the Products.  Plaintiff would not have purchased the Products had he known 

Defendant’s advertising claims were false. 

71. Defendant violated Business & Professions Code § 17500 by publicly 

disseminating false, misleading, and unsubstantiated advertisements regarding the 

Products. 

72. Defendant’s false, misleading and unsubstantiated advertisements were 

disseminated to increase the sales of the Products. 

73. Defendant knew or should have known that their advertisements for the 

Products were false and misleading. 

74. Furthermore, Defendant publicly disseminated the false and misleading 

advertisements. 

75. Plaintiff and the members of the Class have suffered harm as a result of 

these violations of the FAL because they have incurred charges and/or paid monies for 

the Products that they otherwise would not have incurred or paid. 
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76. Defendant is aware, or by the exercise of reasonable care should have 

been aware, that the representations were untrue or misleading. 

77. Plaintiff and the members of the Class have suffered injury in fact and 

have lost money as a result of Defendant’s false representations and false advertising.   

78. Pursuant to Business & Professions Code § 17535, Plaintiff and the 

members of the putative Class seek an order of this Court enjoining Defendant from 

continuing to engage, use, or employ their practice of advertising the sale and use of 

the Products.   

79. Likewise, Plaintiff and the members of the putative Class seek an order 

requiring Defendant to disclose such misrepresentations, and additionally request an 

order awarding Plaintiff and other members of the putative class restitution of the 

money wrongfully acquired by Defendant by means of responsibility attached to 

Defendant’s failure to disclose the existence and significance of said 

misrepresentations. 

THIRD CAUSE OF ACTION 
VIOLATION OF CALIFORNIA LEGAL REMEDIES ACT 

(CAL. CIV. CODE § 1750 et seq.) 

80. Plaintiff incorporates by this reference the allegations contained in the 

preceding paragraphs as if fully set forth herein. 

81. Plaintiff brings this claim individually and on behalf of the proposed 

Class against Defendant. 

82. As alleged herein, Plaintiff has standing to pursue this claim as Plaintiff 

has suffered injury in fact and has lost money or property as a result of Defendant’s 

actions.  Specifically, Plaintiff purchased the Products multiple times for his own 

dog’s consumption.  In so doing, Plaintiff relied upon the material false 

representations that the Products do not contain certain undesirable ingredients and 

will cause or assist in superior pet nutrition, as referenced above.  Plaintiff fed his dog 

the Products as directed and Plaintiff’s dog thereby consumed the undesirable 
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ingredients contained in the Products.  Plaintiff would not have purchased the 

Products had he known Defendant’s advertising claims were false. 

83. Plaintiff has concurrently filed the declaration of venue required by Civil 

Code §1780(d) with this complaint.   

84. Defendant has violated and continues to violate the CLRA by engaging 

in the following practices proscribed by California Civil Code §1770(a) in 

transactions with Plaintiff and the Class which were intended to result in, and did 

result in, the sale of the Products:  

§1770(a) (5) Representing that [the Products have] ... characteristics, ... 

uses [or] benefits ... which [it does] not have ... .  

§1770(a) (7) Representing that [the Products are] of a particular standard, 

quality or grade ... if [it is] of another. 

85. Plaintiff’s counsel sent to Defendant a written notice letter via certified 

mail as required by Civil Code Section 1782(a).  If Defendant fails to rectify or agree 

to rectify the problems associated with the actions detailed above and give notice to all 

affected consumers within 30 days of the date of written notice pursuant to §1782 of 

the Act, Plaintiff will amend this complaint to add claims for actual, punitive and 

statutory damages, as appropriate. 

86. Defendant’s wrongful business practices constituted, and constitute, a 

continuing course of conduct in violation of the CLRA. Pursuant to Civil Code § 

1782(d), Plaintiff and the Classes seek a Court order enjoining the above-described 

wrongful acts and practices of Defendant along with any other conduct found by the 

Court to be illegal, fraudulent, misleading, unlawful, unfair and/or deceptive conduct. 

87. Plaintiff engaged counsel to prosecute this action and is entitled to 

recover costs and reasonable attorney’s fees according to proof at trial.   

PRAYER FOR RELIEF 

 WHEREFORE, Plaintiff, on behalf of herself and as a representative of all 

other persons similarly situated, prays for judgment against Defendant, as follows: 
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1. An order certifying that the action may be maintained as a Class Action; 

2. An order enjoining Defendant from pursuing the policies, acts, and 

practices complained of herein. 

3. An order requiring Defendant to pay restitution to Plaintiff and all 

members of the Classes; 

4. For pre-judgment interest from the date of filing this suit; 

5. For reasonable attorneys’ fees; 

6. Costs of this suit; and, 

7. Such other and further relief as the Court may deem necessary and 

appropriate.  

 

 

 

DATED: July 29, 2014 MILSTEIN ADELMAN LLP 

 By:   /s/ Gillian L. Wade
 Gillian L. Wade  

Allison R. Willett 
Sara D. Avila 
Attorneys for Plaintiffs, and the Proposed Class 
 

 
DATED: July 29, 2014 HALUNEN & ASSOCIATES LLP 
 

 
 
By:  /s/  Melissa W. Wolchansky  

 Melissa W. Wolchansky  
Attorneys for Plaintiffs, and the Proposed Class 
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EXHIBIT A 
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AO 440 (Rev. 06/12)  Summons in a Civil Action (Page 2)

Civil Action No.

PROOF OF SERVICE

(This section should not be filed with the court unless required by Fed. R. Civ. P. 4 (l))

This summons for (name of individual and title, if any)

was received by me on (date) .

I personally served the summons on the individual at (place)

on (date) ; or

I left the summons at the individual’s residence or usual place of abode with (name)

, a person of suitable age and discretion who resides there,

on (date) , and mailed a copy to the individual’s last known address; or

I served the summons on (name of individual) , who is

 designated by law to accept service of process on behalf of (name of organization)

on (date) ; or

I returned the summons unexecuted because ; or

Other (specify):

.

My fees are $ for travel and $ for services, for a total of $ .

I declare under penalty of perjury that this information is true.

Date:
Server’s signature

Printed name and title

Server’s address

Additional information regarding attempted service, etc:

0.00
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